Public Document Pack

Legal and Democratic Services EPSOM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE

Thursday 20 June 2019 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Community and Wellbeing
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business
set out in this agenda.

Councillor Barry Nash (Chair) Councillor Luke Giles
Councillor Hannah Dalton (Vice- Councillor Christine Howells
Chair) Councillor Julie Morris
Councillor Kate Chinn Councillor Phil Neale
Councillor Christine Cleveland Councillor Peter Webb

Councillor Bernice Froud

Yours sincerely

\( Ee\de~r

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, 01372 732122 or
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME
To take any questions from members of the Public.

Please note: Members of the Public are requested to inform the
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting begins if they wish to ask
a verbal question to the Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the
meeting.



MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 6)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting
of the Committee held on 19 March 2019 (attached) and to authorise the Chair
to sign them.

RAINBOW LEISURE CENTRE- CHANGE OF USE OF BOWLS HALL (Pages
7 - 52)

The Committee is asked to consider a proposal to change the existing use of
the underutilised bowls hall into a soft play area for families with young children.

EWELL COURT HOUSE (Pages 53 - 66)

This report sets out the action taken by the Council in recent months to increase
bookings at Ewell Court House as part of the Council’s agreed approach to
enterprise and income generation. This approach aims to make discretionary
Council activities more financially sustainable, ensuring that valued services
continue to be available in both the short and longer term. Although the actions
taken by the Council to date have led to some improvements in bookings, this
has not been at a level needed to make the venue financially sustainable.

This report explores the opportunity and potential benefits from entering into a
partnership with a specialist from the wedding and events sector to maximise
the public and community use of this important and treasured building and
recommends a way forward.

FORWARD PLAN (Pages 67 - 72)

This report asks the Committee to agree its forward plan for 2019/20.



Agenda Item 3

15

Minutes of the Meeting of the COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE held
on 19 March 2019

PRESENT -

Councillor Barry Nash (Chairman); Councillor Tony Axelrod (Vice-Chairman);
Councillors Kate Chinn, Alex Coley (as nominated substitute for Councillor Clive
Woodbridge), Hannah Dalton, Colin Keane (as nominated substitute for Councillor Liz
Frost), Jean Steer MBE and Alan Sursham

In Attendance:

Absent: Councillor Lucie Dallen, Councillor Liz Frost, Councillor Jane Race and
Councillor Clive Woodbridge

Officers present: Damian Roberts (Chief Operating Officer), Rod Brown (Head of
Housing and Community), lan Dyer (Head of Operational Services), Mark Shephard
(Head of Property and Regeneration), Stewart Cocker (Countryside Manager) (ltems
28-31 only), Rachel Kundasamy (Health and Wellbeing Officer) (ltems 28-34 only),
Serena Powis (Community and Voluntary Sector Liaison Officer) (Items 28-30 only),
Teresa Wingfield (Senior Accountant) and Tim Richardson (Democratic Services
Officer)

28 QUESTION TIME

No questions were received from members of the public.

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations of interests were made by Councillors in relation to
items of business on the agenda for the meeting:

Support for Voluntary Organisations

Councillor Jean Steer MBE, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and
transparency Councillor Jean Steer declared that she is a Council appointed
representative to the General Committee of Age Concern Epsom and Ewell.

Support for Voluntary Organisations

Councillor Tony Axelrod, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and transparency
Councillor Tony Axelrod declared that he is a Council appointed representative to the
Committee of Management of Citizens Advice Epsom and Ewell.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 3



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 19 March 2019 16

30

31

32

33

34

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee held on
22 January 2019 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

EPSOM & EWELL BIODIVERSITY ACTION PLAN - 2018 ANNUAL UPDATE

The Committee received a report presenting an annual update on progress
made in implementing the Epsom & Ewell Local Biodiversity Action Plan 2010-
2020.

Following consideration, it was resolved:

(1) That the Committee noted the progress during 2018 in implementing the
Epsom and Ewell Local Biodiversity Plan.

SUPPORT FOR VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS

The Committee received a report showing how each of the voluntary
organisations in receipt of financial support from the Council contributed to
achieving the Council’'s Corporate Plan priorities and those of the Surrey Health
and Wellbeing Board.

Following consideration, it was resolved:
(1) That the Committee noted the report and evidence of how each of the

voluntary organisations supported by the Council impact on the Council’s
corporate priorities and those of Surrey’s Health and Wellbeing Board.

PROGRESS REPORT ON HOME FROM HOSPITAL

The Committee received a report providing an update on the progress of the
Home from Hospital Support Service.

Following consideration, it was resolved:

(1) That the Committee noted the progress of the Home from Hospital Service
since 1 October 2018.

CORPORATE PLAN: KEY PRIORITY TARGETS FOR 2019 TO 2020

The Committee received a report presenting its Key Priority Targets for 2019 to
2020.

Following consideration, it was resolved:

(1) That the Committee agreed its Key Priority Targets for 2019 to 2020 as set
out at Annex 1 to the report.

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 4



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 19 March 2019 17

35

36

VENUES RESTRUCTURE

The Committee received a report seeking approval of one off costs to implement
the recently approved restructure of Venues.

The following matter was considered:

a) Purpose of expenditure. The Committee noted that the report proposed
an expenditure of up to £85,000 and set out the broad outcomes which
would be achieved by the restructure. This included addressing the
overspend on overtime of c£122k in 2018/19, delivering the service within
its approved budget in 2019/20.

The Committee considered the proposal. Members of the Committee
identified that the report did not provide detailed information on the
intended use of the proposed sum and queried why. Officers informed the
Committee that detailed financial information of this nature would require
public access to the report to be restricted.

In summing up the item, the Chairman highlighted to the Committee that
the proposed expenditure was lower than the current ongoing overspend
on overtime, and would enable it to be avoided in future.

Following consideration, it was resolved (there being 4 Members in favour, 3
members against and 1 abstention):

(1) That the Committee supported the payment of the one off costs of
the Venues restructure of up to £85k and requested Strategy &
Resources Committee to authorise one off costs of up to £85k, to
return the service to operating within budget.

In agreeing the above resolution, the Committee noted that an update report on
the venues restructure would be presented to a future meeting of the Committee.

VOTE OF THANKS

The Chairman thanked Officers and Members for their work over the past year.
The Committee thanked the Chairman for his work on their behalf.

It was noted that this would be the Vice-Chairman’s last meeting as a Member of
the Committee, and the Chairman and Committee expressed their thanks to him
for his work over the past 3 and a half years.

It was also noted that this would be Councillor Jean Steer’s last meeting as a
Member of the Committee, and the Chairman and Committee expressed their
thanks to her for her work over the past 24 years, as both a Member of the
Community and Wellbeing and Chairman of the previous Social Committee.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 8.36 pm

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 5



Agenda Item 3

Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 19 March 2019 18

COUNCILLOR BARRY NASH (CHAIRMAN)

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council Page 6



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

RAINBOW LEISURE CENTRE- CHANGE OF USE OF BOWLS HALL

Head of Service/Contact: Rod Brown, Head of Housing & Community
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): = Annex 1: GLL's Change Control Notice

Annex 2: Bowls Hall vs Play Park
Consultation at Rainbow Leisure Centre

Annex 3: Letter from Hunter’'s Bowling Club
Annex 4: Letter from local bowler

Other available papers (not
attached):

Report summary

A contractual Change Control Notice has been submitted to the Council by its
contractor Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) in relation to a proposal to change the
existing use of the underutilised bowls hall into a soft play area for families with
young children.

Recommendation (s)

(1) To note the results of the consultation exercise undertaken by GLL with
users of the Rainbow Leisure Centre.

(2) To approve the Change Control Notice submitted by GLL at Annex 1, and
agree to change the use of the Bowls Hall at Rainbow Leisure Centre into
an Indoor Children’s Soft Play area.

(3) Subject to 2), agree to relocate the provision of bowls into the Sports Hall
of the Rainbow Leisure Centre, as a programmed sport.

(4) Subject to 2), recommend that consideration is given to bringing a report
to Environment and Safe Communities Committee regarding opening
Hook Road Car Park on a Sunday.

Page 7



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The Rainbow Leisure Centre contributes directly to the Council’s Key
Priority ‘Supporting our Community’ and is an important contributor to the
Council’s developing approach to Health and Wellbeing.

2 Background

2.1 The Rainbow Leisure Centre is a multi-use, multi-purpose community
centre that was rebuilt in 2003. The currently named Bowls Hall at the
Rainbow Leisure Centre is a dedicated facility for indoor bowls, which as a
result restricts other activities from taking place in the same location.

2.2 Over the last 5 years the Rainbow Leisure Centre has seen a steady but
significant decrease in the number of clubs/groups playing indoor bowls.
To date the number has dropped from 25 to 13 active clubs/groups. The
total number of people playing indoor bowls at the Rainbow Leisure
Centre as part of a club or group is currently 148 of which just 71 are
residents of Epsom & Ewell.

2.3 The decline in people playing indoor bowls is expected to continue at a
similar rate. Across Surrey, there are 11 large indoor affiliated bowls clubs,
but overall these have seen steady decline in participation of 1-2% per
year.

2.4  The Bowls Development Alliance has confirmed that since the new
Rainbow Leisure Centre was opened in 2003 there have been no clubs
from the Centre affiliated to the BDA or Bowls England. This means that
no competitive bowls matches have been played there suggesting that
those that currently play, do so for more recreational benefits. Since none
of the clubs are affiliated, they do not receive support from the BDA or
Bowls England

2.5 Indoor bowls is seasonal which means that between May and September
the number of bookings in the purpose built hall drop significantly and in
some months are non-existent. This effectively means that for 5-6 months
of the year the current bowls facility remains un-used and stands empty as
demonstrated in Graph 1 below:

Page 8



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 4
20 June 2019

Graph 1: Bowls Bookings taken over 4 years at Rainbow Leisure Centre

250 1
Total Bowls Bookings per month 2015-2018

200

150 M Year 2015

M Year 2016
Year 2017
M Year 2018

100

50

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

3 Proposal

3.1 The CCN submitted by GLL details a proposal to change the use of the
existing indoor bowls hall into a Children’s Indoor Play Park and to
relocate the bowls provision as a programmable sport within the existing
sports hall.

3.2 The introduction of a new children’s indoor play park would enable greater
access to the Leisure Centre by families with young children, boosting
related activity rates, and addressing a current short-fall in provision for
young children.

3.3 To ensure accessability for all, GLL plan to offer a pay and play option for
anyone on income support or with a disability. Therefore, they would pay
£20.10 per year for a P&P membership and get a discount of 20% off the
entry price each time they visited. This would mean that they could pay
back their membership in savings if they visited once per month and would
benefit thereafter.

3.4  The current utilisation of the centre by age group is as follows:

0.-4 years 1.8%

Page 9



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

5-10 years 3.8%
11-15 years 5.9%
16-44 years 42.3%
45-59 years 18.0%
60+ years 28.2%

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

GLL have introduced a similar concept in Sutton at their Sports Village, 5
miles away from Rainbow Leisure Centre. This facility includes a specific
area for under 3’s with a sensory zone and play aimed at this younger age
group. There are also more challenging play structures for over 3’s with
slides and climbing frames which allow children to explore their physical
capabilities within a safe and secure environment.

The play park at Sutton Sports Village is currently attracting 3,200 visits
every month, this boosts the 0-8 year old usage and if replicated will help
to increase the Rainbow Leisure Centre monthly usage by 8-10%.

There are currently limited options within the borough for indoor children’s
play areas. These are;

3.7.1 Giggles soft play at the Harrier Centre in Ewell.
3.7.2 Jupiter JO’s in West Ewell.
3.7.3 Once Upon A Time Soft Play in Epsom.

The proposal also seeks to relocate the provision of bowls to the main
sports hall as a programmed sport similar to all the other sports offered at
the Leisure Centre. A provisional sports hall programme has been drawn
up to ensure that all existing clubs can be accommodated within this area.

If the proposal for a new indoor soft play park is approved, GLL will
purchase 1 or 2 full length bowls mats at a quoted price of £3,613 each
mat. In addition, Fenders will be installed at a cost of £400, 2 metres from
the end of each mat to stop the bowls from leaving the end of the mat.
Comfortable padded seating (up to 20 chairs) will also be provided for the
bowlers in the sports hall. This investment will allow for bowls to be a
bookable sport as with all other sports offered at the Rainbow leisure
centre.

The indoor play park which will be fully funded by GLL, would be built on
top of the existing bowls rink so it could be brought back into use at any
future point if required.

Page 10



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

3.11

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

9.9

5.6

Details of the proposed Children’s Indoor Play Park are attached as
appendix 1 in Annex 1.

Timeframe

If the Community & Wellbeing Committee approve the proposal then GLL
will seek to commence the necessary works immediately.

The Bowls clubs/groups will be formally contacted to confirm the situation
and to offer an alternative provision in the sports hall.

Work on installing the new Indoor Children’s Soft Play Park would
commence at the beginning of August and would be expected to be
completed by the beginning of October.

GLL will ensure Health & Safety inspections are carried out ahead of the
new facility being officially opened.

Consultation

As part of their proposal, GLL has undertaken a consultation process with
their Leisure Centre users. This consultation process was open for 4
weeks from 09/04/19 — 12/05/19 and was open to all users of the Rainbow
Leisure Centre.

The consultation was split into 3 separate methods which included a face-
to-face meeting with the bowlers, an on-line survey and a hard-copy
questionnaire.

Details of the consultation process and the results obtained are detailed at
Annexe 2.

All current bowls clubs/groups playing at the centre were represented at
the face-to-face meeting. Understandably the bowlers were not happy
about potentially losing their purpose built bowls hall and having to play on
a long mat in the sports hall. However, 23% of bowlers who also
completed a questionnaire did support the proposal to change the use of
the bowls hall to an indoor soft play park.

The on-line survey saw 1555 emails sent out to those members who had
opted in to GDPR regulations. Only 6% responded but the majority of
those were interested in a Play Park at the Rainbow Leisure Centre.

The hard-copy questionnaire received the biggest response with 355
questionnaires being completed which included those bowlers who
completed a questionnaire after their face-to face meeting. When asked
‘would you welcome the idea of a new play park at the Rainbow?’ there
were 294 yes responses and 61 no responses.

Page 11



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

5.7

Following the consultation period, the Council has received two letters
detailed at annex 3 and annex 4, from Hunters Bowling Club and a local
bowler stating their disappointment in the proposal by GLL. The Hunters
Bowling Club have requested an extended consultation period of one year
to give them time to promote their sport indoors and out.

6 Implications of the Proposal

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

GLL are seeking to offer a more enhanced provision for the under 8’s age
group. The introduction of an Indoor Children’s Soft Play Park at the
Rainbow Leisure Centre will help to increase participation rates for this
age group.

The Indoor Children’s Soft Play Park will attract more visits to the centre
which in turn is likely to result in a rise in memberships. As children play,
older family members will visit the café or use other facilities within the
centre which is likely to increase revenue for the centre.

Parking is already very limited on site but GLL have already introduced
more effective signage to direct customers to and from Hook Road Car
Park. This car park is managed by EEBC and so any rise in the number of
customers using Hook Road Car Park will result directly in an increase in
income for the car park.

GLL have asked if the Council would consider opening Hook Road Car
Park on a Sunday to accommodate the rise in visits to the Rainbow
Leisure Centre at the weekends as a result of the new soft play park. The
Head of Operational Services has confirmed that this will be given further
consideration and will require a full viability report and then if appropriate a
report will be brought to Environment and Safe Communities Committee
for the necessary changes.

If the soft play park proposal was approved and the bowls was re-provided
in the sports hall it is likely that some bowls clubs/groups would fold or
leave to go elsewhere.

If an extended consultation period was considered to allow the bowlers
time to promote their sport, it would delay GLL'’s proposal and therefore
have an impact on their ability to generate additional income sooner.

7 Financial and Manpower Implications

7.1

7.2

Under the existing contract GLL pay an annual management fee to the
Council. GLL are not proposing to change the contracted payment.

GLL will be fully funding the proposal so there is no financial risk to the
Council. The total cost of the play park and therefore GLL'’s value of
investment is expected to be £281,905 gross.

Page 12



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

10

11

7.3

7.4

Changing the use of the bowls hall to a new Children’s Play Park will allow
GLL to generate increased revenue and memberships. This improved
financial position will ensure a more competitive position when the existing
contract is re-tendered in 2025.

Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report,
although any decision to change car parking opening times should be
subject to a review of additional costs and potential additional income.

Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

A Change Control Notice (CCN), is the contractual mechanism for any
change in operation under a contract to be instigated.

The Council is the freehold owner of the Rainbow Leisure Centre and in
accordance with the requirements of the Rainbow Redevelopment Service
Agreement with GLL they have submitted to the Council, a Change
Control Notice (CCN). The CCN is attached at Annex 1.

The requirements are set out in Schedule 21 of the Agreement and clause
1.2, states ‘the Council shall not unreasonably withhold their agreement to
any change’. |t is therefore expected that the Council will give their
agreement to a CCN unless there is a good and sufficient reason for
withholding this.

The contract states that upon receipt of a CCN the Council should
evaluate this and then as appropriate either:

8.4.1 Request further information, or
8.4.2 Approve the CCN, or
8.4.3 Notify the Operator of the rejection of the CCN

Monitoring Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this
report.

Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

9.1

There are no implications for the purpose of this report.

Partnerships

10.1 There are no implications for the purpose of this report.

Risk Assessment

11.1

If the Council does not evaluate the CNN then it may be found to be in
breach of contract.

Page 13



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

11.2

If the Council does not approve the CNN there could be a negative impact
on the financial value of the contract which could have an adverse
implication for the re-tendering of the contract in 2025.

12 Conclusion and Recommendations

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

GLL have submitted a Change Control Notice detailing a proposal to
change the use of the bowls hall into an Indoor Children’s Soft Play Park.

The bowls hall effectively stands empty for 6 months of the year due to the
seasonal nature of the sport. There has also been a significant decline in
the number of clubs/groups using the bowls hall which is expected to
continue.

GLL have introduced a very successful indoor soft play park at Sutton
Sports Village which has seen a significant increase in the number of visits
to the centre.

GLL are seeking to provide an improved offer for younger children in the
borough to attract younger visitors and to meet the demand for indoor soft
play facilities within a limited market.

The majority of the existing bowlers at the Rainbow Leisure Centre are
opposed to any such proposal and would like the opportunity to see if they
can increase their playing numbers and therefore improve on the financial
viability of the bowls hall. However, as none of the bowls clubs/groups
who play at the centre are affiliated to Bowls England or the BDA it is
unlikely that playing numbers will increase to such an extent that it
changes the financial viability of keeping the bowls hall in use.

Indoor bowling is not being stopped at the Rainbow Leisure Centre but
relocated into the sports hall as a programmable sport similar to all other
sports available at the centre.

The quality of the bowling facility will not be as high as the purpose indoor
bowls hall but as no competitive bowls takes place at the centre, the
opportunity for recreational bowls will not be lost.

Within the existing contract Schedule 21: 1.2, states ‘the Council shall not
unreasonably withhold their agreement to any change.’

The contract states that the Council shall evaluate the CCN as attached at
Annex 1 and as appropriate either:

Request further information, or
Approve the CCN, or

Notify the Operator of the rejection of the CCN

Page 14



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Iltem 4
20 June 2019

12.10 The recommendation is that the Community & Wellbeing Committee
approve the CCN and allow GLL to change the use of the Indoor Bowls
Hall to an Indoor Children’s Soft Play Park. In doing so indoor bowls will
be relocated to the sports hall.

Ward(s) Affected: (All Wards);

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Agenda ltem 4
Annex 1

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Change Notice 16.01.2019

Rainbow Children’s Play Park

1. The originator and date of the request for the change

James Brackenborough & Darren Pope
Date for change: June 2019

2. Thereason for the change

The Bowls Hall at Rainbow Leisure Centre is a dedicated facility for indoor bowls which restricts other
activities from taking place. Since 2014 use of the bowils facility has diminished significantly with 11 clubs
ceasing to re-book leaving only 13 clubs remaining (please see Appendix 1- Rainbow Leisure Centre Indoor
Play Park Proposal, Appendix 1).

Due to the nature of the bowls hall being a seasonal activity and the facility being dedicated there is a long
period during the fair weather months (April — September) when the Rainbow Leisure Centre experiences
no booking and the bowls hall remains empty (please see Appendix 1 — Rainbow Leisure Centre Indoor
Play Park Proposal, which demonstrates the utilisation of the bowls hall throughout the year in Appendix
2).

GLL propose to change the use of the bowls hall to a new Children’s Indoor Play Park which will provide a
safe and secure environment for energetic play, moving children away from static screen based
entertainment and helping tackle the rise in childhood obesity. This new development will lead to a
significant increase in participation levels, whilst also allowing the current Bowls programme to be fully
relocated into the Sports Hall.

In the ‘Leisure Development Strategy — Year 3 Q1 2019’ Section 1.2.2 it states...

‘Work with Rainbow Leisure Centre to Introduce and sustain active leisure opportunities for pre-
school Children’.

GLL believes that the Children’s Play Park will assist E&EBC in achieving this objective.

Please see Appendix 5 of the Rainbow Leisure Centre Indoor Play Park Proposal which references the
utilisation of current age group usage. It details that ages 0-4 make up under 1.8% of the leisure centre
overall participation.

3. Full details of the change including any specifications
To be confirmed when House of Play confirm Spec.

4. The variation to the Annual Contract Payment, if any, resulting from such change

There is no proposed change to the contracted payment. GLL will be funding all the capital required for
this development meaning there is no financial risk to the Council. Since 2005 the management of the
Rainbow Leisure Centre has cost GLL £869,143 (please see Appendix 2 — Rainbow Financial Summary).
Changing the use of the bowls hall to a new Children’s Play Park will allow GLL to partially mitigate this
deficit and in turn leave the Rainbow Leisure Centre in a better financial position for E&EBC for when it is
time to re-tender in 2025.

Page 17



Agenda Item 4

Annex 1

5. Atimetable for the implementation of the change

Task Date

Consultation period commences 9.4.19

Consultation period ends 12.5.19

Full report with consultation results go to the Community and 20.6.19

Wellbeing Committee

Official decision to be communicated to all Bowls Clubs 24.6.19

Contractors appointed 25.6.19

Work to commence on the play park 1.8.19

Play park opens 1.10.19

6. The impact, if any, of the change on other aspects of the agreement

- Parking
GLL have installed new signage at the entrance to the Hook Road car park welcoming Rainbow Leisure
Centre customers and also signage that directs customers through the alley and to the entrance of
the leisure centre.

Signage locations were approved by E&EBC Leisure Development Manager, Dr Sam Beak.

The ambition is to see uplift in the number of Rainbow Leisure Centre members using the Hook Road
car park making it easier for all users to access the facilities. During period of 1.10.2017 to 30.09.2018
there were 12,263 individual visits to Hook Road car park by Rainbow Leisure Centre customers
(figure from an email sent by Richard Chevalier to Dr Sam Beak 24.10.2018). The ambition is to
increase this usage by 50% in the year following the proposed signage being introduced.

- Increased reception footfall
The Rainbow Leisure Centre boasts fast track entry for pre-paid members which reduces the number
of customer that are required to see a receptionist.
One of GLL’s key work streams during 2019 is to introduce chip and pin enabled kiosks to enable non
members to use the kiosk entry systems. This will be supported by concierge staff.

The Children’s Play Park will have an option of pre paid membership which will enable access through
the kiosks prior to chip and pin being introduced.

7. Provision for signature by the Council and by the Operator

Page 18



Agenda ltem 4
Annex 1

CHANGE CONTROL NOTE
Ref:

No:

Title of change:
Date:

Details of Change:
Reasons of Change:
Impact of Change:

Timetable:

Work Plan (activities to be undertaken), the relevant timescale (elapsed time), the resource requirement
(expressed in work days) broken down by type of resource, details of any necessary capital or revenue
expenditure, detail of any contingency in timescales, details of any contingency in resources planning.

Details of increased revenue arising as a result of the change or any new service to be offered at the Leisure
Centre.

Reduction /Increase to the Annual Contract Payment to the Operator as a result of the change of new service.

Price:

Originator:

Council Response: Accept/Reject

PCL2/788452/16

Appendix 1 of Council Change Notice

Page 19



Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

RAINBOW LEISURE CENTRE INDOOR PLAY PARK PROPOSAL

MONMSTER THEMED TODDLER PLAY

g vl . BT

1.0 Key Decisions

1. Agree to change the use of the Bowls Hall at Rainbow Leisure Centre to a Junior Play area.

2. Agree to relocate the Bowls Clubs / Bookings to the Sports Hall as a programmed sport.

Page 20



Agenda ltem 4
Annex 1

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Rainbow Leisure Centre was rebuilt in 2003 with demand for a bowls hall justified within the
new facilities. Over the last 5 years we have seen a decrease in this sport which has seen 11
clubs cancel their bookings. The following clubs/groups no longer use Rainbow Leisure
Centre.

o Alley Cats BC

e (Carshalton Beeches A
e Hunters Bowling B

e Jeannette Goodwin

e Epsom Court A

e Epsom Court lzzard B

e Rosehill BC

e Men Cap

e Road Transport Media
e V Marsh

e Peter Revel Group
Please refer to Appendix 1 graph showing the decrease in bowls clubs.

1.2 Bowils is a seasonal sport which is played indoors from October to March and outside from
April to September. Therefore, there is a 6 month period of very low / no usage in the
Rainbow bowls hall. It is not possible to use the hall for anything else during these summer
months due to the split level design. As a result, the hall remains unused (graph is included in
Appendix 2 illustrating the changes in booking numbers across the year).

1.3 There are still 13 active groups that use the bowls rink but the position is vulnerable if clubs
leave the centre at the current rate. From the 13 clubs that use Rainbow, there are 148
bowlers in total and only 71 players that live inside of Epsom. This figure as been derived
from a telephone survey carried out by the centre (see appendix 3).

1.4 In order to make room for the under 8’s indoor play area, all 13 clubs will be required to

relocate to the sports hall. A provisional sports hall programme has been drawn up to ensure
that all 13 clubs can be accommodated within this area. This has been achieved by

Page 21



1.5

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

programming other activities which has not resulted in cancellations of any sports. A break
down in how this has been achieved can be found in Appendix 3.

If the proposal for a new under 8’s indoor play park is approved, GLL will purchase 2 full
length bowls mats that can be laid in the sports hall making Bowls a bookable sport as with all
other sports offered at the Rainbow leisure centre. Consideration will be made with regards
to the underlay for the bowls mats along with new comfortable seating that can be set up
around the edges of the sports hall.

Three quotations have been obtained for the supply and installation of removable bowls
mats to be located in the Sports Hall. These will positioned and stored at the far end of the
hall for ease of use and flexibility of use. GLL have also received a letter from a experienced
bowls professional who has confirmed that portable matting along with 2m fenders can be
used for recreational bowls. Please see letter in appendix

All clubs will be consulted, kept up to date and where possible and be given the same times
or days that they currently book. See Appendix 4 showing an image and layout of how bowls
can be accommodated in the Sports Hall alongside other sports, such as Badminton.

2.0 The Junior Indoor Play Park

2.0

2.1

GLL have introduced a new indoor play park at Sutton Sports Village 5 miles away from
Rainbow Leisure Centre. This facility includes a specific area for under 3’s with a sensory
zone and play aimed at this younger age group. There are also more challenging play
structures for over 3’s with slides and climbing frames which allows children to explore their
physical capabilities within a safe and secure environment. The current Bowls area is the
right location to introduce a similar indoor play park that will enhance the visit of many
Rainbow customers, and attract new ones. Please see appendix 8 for photos/illustrations of
the Sutton Indoor play park. Please see appendix 9 for testimonials of the Sutton Play Park.

Demographics of Rainbow Leisure Centre — The centre caters for all areas of the community
offering affordable facilities for all ages. Some facilities are more popular than others (such
as the gym and the pool) and at present we have a strong catchment of16-44yrs, 45-59yrs
and 60+ years, but improvement for the level of customers under 10 years old will be
achieved by introducing this junior play area. The current breakdown is as follows:

0.-4 years 1.8%
5-10 years 3.8%
11-15 years 5.9%
16-44 years 42.3%
45-59 years 18.0%
60+ years 28.2%

See Appendix 5 for graph showing the age demographic of Rainbow Leisure Centre

2.2.2 The play park at Sutton Sports Village is currently attracting 3,500 visits every month,
this boosts the 0-8 year old usage and if replicated will increase Rainbow LC monthly usage
by 8-10%. GLL share Epsom and Ewell’s Leisure Development Strategy of working with
Rainbow Leisure Centre to introduce and sustain active opportunities for pre school children
(See appendix 10 — point 1.2.2)

Page 22



2.2

Agenda ltem 4
Annex 1

2.2.3 The new play park will also improve the Rainbow Birthday party offering. At present
the centre caters for 20-30 parties per month. With the introduction of the new facility, this
could increase to 80 parties per month.

2.2.4 There are limited options within the borough for indoor children’s play areas. At
present, there are only 3 soft play options for over 5,000 under 8’s that live in the borough.
The following children’s soft play areas in the borough are as follows:

Giggles soft play at the Harrier Centre in Ewell.
Jupiter Joes in Ewell.
Once upon a time in Epsom.

Each of these facilities lack investment and are under used by the residents of Epsom due to
their appeal. Instead most residents choose other facilities outside of the borough (such as
Leatherhead Leisure Centre or Sutton Sports Village) due to their recent investments.

2.2.5 Although Rainbow’s normal catchment area is within a 10 minute drive of the centre
(see Appendix 7). Due to the lack of quality indoor play parks within Surrey and London, it is
likely that this catchment area will stretch to 20-30 minutes, therefore attracting residents
from Mole Valley, Kingston, Richmond, Spelthorne, Sutton, Weybridge and Woking.

Price Point — After carrying out a competitor review and considering the investment going
into the Rainbow facility, £5.50 for over 2’s and £2 for under 2’s is the suggested price point
(please note that there will be no admission charge for Adults). Membership packages
would also be offered for unlimited use on a monthly or a yearly basis.

3.0 Conclusion

3.1

End.

In this report the need to review our current provision of bowls on the ground floor has been
covered. As highlighted, there is a decrease in club use with a lack of new interest from
younger bowlers inside and outside of the borough. Therefore we feel this proposal to
relocate to the sports hall is sensible and by programming it alongside other sports in our
multi use sports hall, Bowls remains a core sporting offer at Rainbow Leisure Centre.

GLL have a product that is proven with Sutton Sports Village Play Park. This facility has
attracted over 3500 visits month (bear in mind Bowls generated 4032 visits in the whole of
2018). With the introduction of the Rainbow Leisure Centre Play Park, there could be an
increase in visits by 2,000-3,000 per month and at the same time improving the 0-8 age mix
which is the lowest in the membership offering. This project will be funded by GLL and will
be built on top of the current Bowls rink meaning it will remain there if ever required in the
future.

Page 23



Appendix 1 — Total clubs over a 5/6 year period

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

25

TOTAL BOWLS CLUBS USING RAINBOW

Year 2014

Year 2015

Year 2016 Year 2017

Year 2018

Year 2019

Appendix 2 — Bookings taken over 4 years

Page 24



Agenda Item 4

Annex 1
250 T
Total Bowls Bookings per month 2015-2018
200
150
M Year 2015
M Year 2016
M Year 2017
100 M Year 2018
50
0
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Appendix 3 — Bowls relocation to the Sports Hall
By oeech | I
Frevinus time J Mumber of memberyingidethe  |Number of mambers
Ry CQub itk L Mew time Pefocabedto borcugh Dutsiciz the Eorough Tokad Mesbens
Monday Egrsom Park Bowls 14-12pm Bl Hal 1-igm  fsportsHall 1 0
SodhborughBonts _ |+pm Bowlshal __ [2.4gm spons wall 1 ’
Tuesdsy Epsom CoutBowlers  |l0-ddpm [BowlsHal  [1003m  lsportsedl § 1
CarshaltonBeechesBC [12-7pm BawisHail 1ipm  foportshal f 3
Frigndly Bowls {Fetcher] |2-4pes Borwls Hiall 18-1ipm Sports Hall £ i
‘Wednetday Motz Park BC 12-Tpm o s bl 13-1pm Sparts Hall 0 B
1i-Ipmen
Banstead BC 14pm Bowls Hall Thuridays  [SpontsHall i §
Thursday BanteadBowlingdub  [10-13gm BawlsHall 10-13m sports Hall i 1§
Mr hewman (Gngwoed] [13-3pm Bowls Hall 13-Ipm Sports Hall [ Ll
M Wade 1.4pm Bawls Hal 2.40m Sports Hall E 2
Friday Hurfers Bowling F3)-1iam Bowis Hall L& Epm SportsHall 4 1
240w 00
hiawile Bawls L:-3pm {Bowly il Mondays sports Hall 5 5
cheam Bows 1-4pm |Bowls kat 13-1pm Sports Hall | 3
Li-1pm on
Ewei] illage Bowls 1-4pm {Barwis il Wedneodays  {Sports Hall B 0
Satundaps ot effected hoteffected |Noteffeded  |Motefiected  [Noteffesed o 0
Sunday Banstosd Bowls Le3-E3pm JBowlshal 4-Gpm Sports Hall i 13
| | 7 m
Frevious time [Mumber of mesbers insidethe  [Mumber of members
Dy Club slot ] liaw time Relocsted to [oorough outside the borough
o Bookings oo Bookirgs Mo Bookengs | Mo Bookangs o Bookirgs |r4|:| Bookirgs e Booking: P BO0king: Mo Bk

Page 25



Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

Frevious time rumber of membersinodethe  Mumber of members
Dy b ot Srid Miw i Redncated to bocough it e the bonough
Mhaniday Efisom Park T-4pm Bowis Hal I-4am St HY 15 ]
'izrjht-un:l.lgh B 4-6pm |'nu~|l<. [re] 53-11am Sports K 1 4
Tuesday Eqrscen Court Bowls L0-12pen |Bunl<. Hal L1 2pe Sporty H k] i
Carshaiton Baeches L-Ipm ]B[mi‘i Mgl Li-2pm Sporty M B 3
Friendly Bowls {Fletcher] [1-2pm |Bows st 1.30m Searts H 5
David Lesmer 4-Eprm |pawls et 24 Sports [ i
‘Wednesday Mloh oo Park BC 13-Ipm |Elsu.1<, wa 11-1pm Sports K 1] E
Banstead Bowls 1-4pm [awisa Wadpm  [tportsh 1 §
THHrSiEay Banfeed Bowling Qub  jL0-12pm ]Euulf; il L-Lapes Sports 1] 15
e Mewman (Kingrwood] |13:2pm |Bowls st 101200 Eonrty 1 [ i
Nir Wade T-dpm Bl H 1-4pm Spdrts Y [ 1
Friciay Hurier Bowl: Fal-1lam Bl Hgl 1-33pm Sports 4 }
L0-12pe on
rievile Bowls Li-Ipm Bowls Hall Mandiys Sporty 5 5
12-Ipm o
Cheam Bowling 1-dpm Btrwl4 1 Rlorday: Sports H | k|
Saburdays Mot effected hteffected  |Moteffeded  [Meteffectsd  |Noteffeded [ i
Sundsy Barstead Bowls brieLitom [Bowlstall 4-5pm Sports B 0 j¥
b1 Til

Appendix 4 - — Photo/Layout of how Bowls can be accommodated in a Sports Hall

Page 26


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjR14-EyPTeAhVQ1BoKHZl7CW8QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.tutorialspoint.com/lawn_bowling/lawn_bowling_quick_guide.htm&psig=AOvVaw1k68duBznCipEudWjtdy0B&ust=1543407410911036

Appendix 5 — Current age group usage

EH

40

25

Agenda ltem 4

Annex 1

22.9%

19.

-—

g
N
°
i

45.6%

£10Z-A0N

b & $

Xax

Xax

b @

45.9%

47.8%

46.4%

24.1%

429 42.4% 42.6%
2%6%
24.2%
21.5%
17.9%
S s

£10Z-33a

gLoz-uef

2102-934

gLOZ-1*N

s10Z-4dv

g 10Z-Aew

44.7%

WK

183%

e

g1oz-unl

462%
43.8%
0% Y™
282%
253% 5% 2 M
17.6% TR0%
I A

g10z-Inl

s10Z-6ny
gloz-das
2102120

+A0w4

+B5w010
#Clwls
-+ D16to44
- E451059
-+ F60+

Page 27



Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

Appendix 6 — Competitor facilities and prices

Page 28



Agenda ltem 4

Annex 1
Competitor Analysis
25718
L 1]
E 9
~ - w i
5 o 3 3 £
g b T o 0
@ o = 2 = 2
o ] =] —_ =2 )
c T b £ g
o X 1 = 0 o
Costs
Under 1's cost £1 £2 £2 £0 £1.25
Costs per session Peak
child under 3 £3.85 £6.75 £5 £5for 2 hrs £395
Costs per session off £3.05 £6.50 £5 £5 for 2hrs
£5.50 peak
Cost for adults /2 95 off peak
additional siblings £2 85 £R 75 £5 £5 £2085
packages
start fram Start from provided self catered -£180,
Cost of hithday costs £250 £132 unknown |:package A-£8 catered- £280
£20for10 free with
Membership needed? A months membership
Facilities
Cafe * % ® X X
Seated area for Parents * % ® X X
Under 1's area it % ® X X
Under &'s area it % ® X
Crver &'s area % ® X
Tiered soft play g ® ® %
Ball pit g ® ®
Trampolines %
Clirmhbing wall A
reaction wall b
Sensory area
Crer 85's programme
lead activities (story %
Birthday parties offered X % X X X
FParking X % X X X
MNappy change and X % X X X
First aiders on duty X

Appendix 7 — 10 minute drive catchment area

Page 29



Agenda ltem 4
Annex 1

Area: Drive-Time, Rainbow LC, 10.0 Minutes
3
¢
g g’
Fi h":gun E . AT ol
i ] o}\’
4 Carshalld
" Ghéizingicn - o1
& E T Sutton
Sygete Cheam !
.
m
i
m
3 2
4 Z %
25 mRng
Ewell East Balloz
&
e ¢
&£
Oshoft ‘% ﬂg ‘:\\;
Q’s‘é e% Y 0&@0
Q"sas £ road =% ~vinkworth R,
it Tree i Road
s S
4 e
8 Banstezd
Y,
lork

Burgh Hesth

[

Page 30

ol
—-—----—._-._.,____.‘i '

f
]
]
]
!
]
)

e
wae

L |8
AN
Ny

Ny, t
\'1\..!
N

N

“-Ii'-‘—
N\
A W

"t '%
NN

—

Ny

\‘
-

=
oy,

—

N

\‘

A\ N
\\“\ X
AN T

- .

~
L
I

AT

=
P 5
4 " —

N =



Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

S S

TODDLER AREA

Appendix 9 — Testimonials of the Sutton Indoor Play Park (Similar to the Rainbow proposal)

Page 31


https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjn44bF6_HeAhUNWhoKHRGbAOkQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://extreme.better.org.uk/sutton/play-park&psig=AOvVaw0jUwwKhJErnCxCaBRzBvWu&ust=1543314172325490
https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj4ndH9x5zeAhXux4UKHTF3Ce0QjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.yourlocalguardian.co.uk/news/16276598.revamp-of-sutton-sports-village-is-now-one-step-closer-to-reality/&psig=AOvVaw0pPxTLxrenUbdftxca1mxk&ust=1540384063424268

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

T Karen Allnutt §3 recommends Better, Sutton Trampoline & Play m v
Park.
13 Octoher &t 0544 - &

Fantastic soft play and trampaline area for toddlers. My 15 manth old absolutely
loved it!

@ Start & private conversation with Karen Alinutt in Messenger, Message

Y Like (J comment &> Share () Message o v

F“_ Claire Chall B3 recommends Better, Sutton Trampaline & Play m ves
Park.
10 September - G

My 18 month old son loved the play park. lots of things to do. friendly colourful
place.

@ Start a private conversation with Claire Chall in Messenger, Messzage

ﬂ Better, Zutton Trampoline & Play Park

il Like (J Comment &> Share () Messane wha

Vicky Goodwin B3 recommends Better, Suttan Trampaline & Play [1] oee
Fark.
T September - €

Took my 2 yrald here and thought it was fabl He was able to climb on everything
without me always having to go with him. | was able to see him most of the time
from the bottom. Highly recommend! Although you do have to leave after your 2
hiour slot which he wasn't a fan ofl

@ Start a private conversation with Wicky Goodwin in Messenger. Message

0 Better, Zutton Trampoline & Play Park

Page 32



Agenda ltem 4

Annex 1
Charlotte Docherty §3 recommends Better, Sutton Trampoline & |I|
¥ Play Park.
B September - G
A group of us with B to 8 month children visited the Trampoline Play Park today
and were all very impressed,
| have a ¥ month old and enjoyed the entire play park.The sensaory room was
lovely, perfectly sized and hidden away =so would reccomend even for younger
babies.
The staff do an excellent job of keeping the entire area clean and tidy and | look
forward to returning next week - can't go wrong for £21
Appendix 10 - Epsom and Ewell Leisure Development Strategy
(1.2.2 Partnership with RLC for Pre school children)
Objectives Actions Funding/Resource | Timescale Taryet Baseline
Implications
developing
community focused
activity programmes
at the Rainbow
Leisure Centre
1.2.2 Waork with the Use of LD budget By end of Develop and sustain | Mo baseline
Rainbow Leisure Centre to | and explore o4 one new activity at
introduce and sustain external funding the Rainbow Leisure
active opportunities for opportunities Centre for preschoal
preschool children children
1.2.3 Work with the Use of LD budget By end of Host Judo training RLC 4 judo
Rainbow Leisure Centre to | and explare o) sessions at the taster
promote usage of the external funding Rainbiow Leisure Sessiong in
centre through the Surrey opportunities Centre 2017
Youth Garmes
1.2.4 Work with the Use of LD budget By end of Introduce a new Mo baseline
Rainbow Leisure Centre and explare 24 course of swimming
and Armateur Swimming external funding sessions focusing on
Association to promote the | opportunities those aged 50+ that
dewelopment of an open may include Learn to
swirn session focused on Swim and/or Swirm
those aged 50+ Doctor
1.3.1 WWark with Ehhisham

Page 33




genda Iltem 4
nnex 1

A
A

Appendix 2 of Council Change Notice — Rainbow Financial Summary (All costs)

GREFNWICHI ISURELIMITED

EPSOM& EWH L PARTNERSHIP - RAINBOW CENIRE

Year2005 Year2006 Year2007 Year2008 Year2009 Year2010 Year2011 Year2012 Year2013 Year2014 Year2015 Year2016 Year 2017 Year 2018

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Fcast
MAIN
INCOVE 444,017 447319 428305 472,546 475972 500,830 521,049 568,723 553,834 543,873 484260 465329 483,507 502,053
EXPENDITURE (698,723) 738,488 709,706 772,245 840,549 737,856 851,672 864,309 1,139,236 1,266,228 1285580 1278344 1355365 1311250
SURPLUS(DEFIIT) (254,705)  (291,169)  (281,400)  (299.699)  (364577)  (237.025)  (330,623) (295,586)  (585403)  (722356)  (801,328) (813,015) (871,858) (809,197)
CATERING
INCOVE 22,761 13,962 12,916 14,125 10,207 12,941 11,165 15,493 14,847 15,074 14,640 8,774 8,694 8,225
EXPENDITURE (10,249) 457 1,782 140 2,741 2,755 463 47 196 407 650 4,653 3,410 2,448
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 12,511 13,505 11,134 13,985 7.467 10,186 10,703 15,446 14,651 14,667 13,990 4,121 5284 5,777
COACHING
INCOVE 292,619 317,292 341,754 371,163 382,466 360,556 452,078 445,350 479,523 568,437 624,700 662,697 739,100 812,839
EXPENDITURE (97,117) 85,499 101,603 114,202 127,849 132,763 137,686 170,996 154,610 185,109 199,053 211,402 201,038 235,720
SURPLUS(DEFIIT) 195,502 231,793 240,152 256,961 254,617 227,793 314,392 274,354 324913 383,328 425647 451295 538062 577,119
WHELLNESS
INCOME 773,007 768,676 712,898 696,313 842,333 960,900 1,003,789 1,147,195 1,272,468 1,502,588 1,356,120 1220392 1,108,803 1,080,112
EXPENDITURE (339,191) 329417 265,036 284,806 343,187 389,363 368,923 437,050 385,207 432,556 398519 444933 409,852 394,280
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 433,816 439,259 447,863 411,417 499,146 571,537 634,866 710,145 887,261 1,070,032 957,601 775459 698951 685832
HEALTHY LIMNG
INCOVE 1,385 3,802 4472 7,334 5,079 4431 3,965 3,261 1,830 1,861 2,053 1,678 1,763
EXPENDITURE 0 [ 0 0 0 0 [ 0 [ 0 86
SURPLUS(DEFIIT) 1,385 3,802 4472 7,334 5,079 4431 3,965 3261 1,830 1,861 2,053 1,592 1,763
SPA
INCOVE [ 128,875 144,838 148426 149416 156925 157,865
EXPENDITURE 0 128,499 136,183 111,740 123,169 139,616 139,104
SURPLUS(DEFIIT) 0 375 8,656 36,685 26,247 17,309 18,761
TRADING TOTALS
INCOME 1,532,404 1,548,634 1,499,675 1558619  1,718312 1,840306 1,992,511 2300553 2452807 2,776,639 2,630,006 2,508,661 2,498,707 2,562,857
EXPENDITURE (1,145280) 1,153,861 1,078,126  1,171484 1,314,325 1,262,737 1,358,743 1,621,858 1,807,749  2,020483  1,995551 2,062,501 2109367 2,082,802
SURPLUS/(DEFICTT) 387,124 394,774 421,549 387,135 403,987 577,569 633,768 708,324 645,058 756,156 634456 446,160 389,340 480,055
Contract Team (pre2008 - costs incured cherged to traging accourts) 8919 84,672 87,903 105,392 117,080 126,144 43532 58,637 57.403 93,069 56,355 34,172
Head Office Allocation 305,183 300,513 271,674 262,459 270,619 208,399 319,113 340,453 305,345 268,864 232456 225111 206252 183320
Management Fee 167,726 210,569 217,686 226,016 236,371 236,597 253,805 258,937 258,937 258,937 273369 284259 289,137 299,125
E&EPartnership Surplus / (Deficit) (85,784)  (116,308) (76,730)  (186,012)  (190,906) (62,820) (56,319) (17,210) 37,244 169,719 71,229 (156279 (162,404)  (36,562)
Prior Year Losses OF [ (85,784)  (202,092)  (278,822)  (464.833)  (655739)  (718,559) (774,.879)  (792,089)  (754,845)  (585,126) (513,898) (670,177) (832,581)
Surplus / (Loss) 85784  (202,092)  (278822)  (464.833)  (655739)  (718559)  (T74879)  (792,089) (754845 (5851260 (513,898 (670,177) (832581) (869,143)

Page 34



Agenda Item 4
Annex 1

Appendix 11 — Letter from Bowls Professional endorsing the Portable Bowls Mats for Recreational
use.

‘ J Email: shop@shotbowl.com
, Web: www.shothowl.com

SHDTBDWL Tel:0O1/7/8 348788

Darren Pope

General Manager

Rainbow Leisure Center

GLL (Greenwich Leisure Ltd)

East Street

Epsom

Surrey

KT17 1BN 22" May 2019

Dear Darren
Portable Carpet Rink Usage

Further to our recent telephone conversation concerning the usage of a portable rink,

| can confirm that this carpet with fenders is suitable for casual play amongst your
members and even friendlies against other clubs/centers but it would be courteous to
inform them of details of your rink.

If you were looking to enter a district league or official competitions such county or
national then you would have to be affiliated to the district league or the county indoor
bowling association but this carpet/surface would not be allowed as there is a
minimum length for the rink and ditches are required at the end of the nnk.

As you are aware that | have managed 4 leisure centers in my career and would agree
that including indoor bowls in your business plan gives you the ability diversify the
activity in this designated area thereby the potential to increase your per square meter
income.

If I can be of any further assistance please don't hesitate in contacting me.

Regards

Trevor Collins
Managing Director

Shotbow! Lid. All rights reserved
Unit 2 Blenheim Way, Northfields Ind Est,
Markat Deeping, Petarborough, PEG BLD.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda ltem 4

Bowls Hall vs Play Park Consultation at Rainbow LeisufdNtéh#rd

1.0 Introduction

1.1

Further to concerns over the decrease in annual visits to the bowls hall at
Rainbow Leisure centre, GLL decided to carry out a series of surveys over
the course of 1 month to ensure that the proposals for a new children’s play
park are in the best interests of all users of the centre. These surveys were
split into 3 methods, these were:

e Face to face meeting with the Bowls Clubs
e Online survey to all users that has opted into the GDPR
¢ Questionnaire table set out in Reception at Rainbow with post box

The consultation period was spread over of the course of 1 month (from 9.4.19 to 9.5.19)

2.0 Face to Face meeting with all Bowls Clubs

2.1

GLL arranged a meeting with bowls players on Tuesday 9" April where all 13
bowls clubs were represented (see register and list of clubs in Appendix
1&2). At this meeting, GLL presented the reasons why the current bowls
area is under review, by illustrating the decrease in clubs and the fall in
participation over a 4 year period. An alterative space was introduced with
any concerns being addressed. The decision to move Bowls to the sports
hall was not popular amongst most of the bowlers, but there were 23% of the
audience who completed questionnaires that supported our proposals (see
photo of the Bowls Hall consultation in Appendix 3)

3.0 Online Survey

3.1

GLL’s marketing department sent our a total of 1,555 emails to members that
has opted in to GDPR regulations (see example email in Appendix 4 and
delivery report in Appendix 5). From this mass email 6% of people returned
their veiws which is below the expected 20% we benchmark. It is worth
noting that the question on the survey is very much different to the one
posed on the questionniare in the leisure centre. The online survey asks

“are you interested”, “neither interested or not interested” and “not intersted”
in a Play park at Rainbow leisure Centre. Here are the results:

Online survev results

50
40 29
30
20
10
0 T T 1
Interested Neither Not interested
interested or
not interested

14 Series 1

Page 37



Agenda Iltem 4
Annex 2
4.0 Questionniare at the Centre

4.1  This method received the biggest response with 355 quesionniares
completed. The questionniare table was set up between 9" April to 10t May
(see questionniare table in Appendix 6). Which allowed plenty of time for all
customers to feedback to GLL on either their support or opposition to the
Play Park proposals. All Questionniares that were completed by the Bowls
Clubs after the meeting on 9t April were included in the results below. (also
see a summary of all results in Appendix 7)

4.2  Age ranges of those who completed a questionniare

Age ranges of those who completed guestionnares

m15-24
W 25-40
m41-54

55+

4.3 Facilities used by those who completed a questionnaire

Activity Room
ipa
Creche

Café

Studios

Sports Hall

Bowels

(UL

G

Fool I

better for everyone

o
wn
=
=
o
=
=
w
=
b
=
=
X
wn
=
w
=
=




4.4

Agenda Iltem 4
Those in favour of a Play Park at Rainbow Leisure Centre Annex 2

e

350

300

250

200

150

100

a0

=

Wouldyouwelcometheidea of anew play park at Rainbow?

294

&l

Yes Mo

Summary of the results from all of the play park surveys

14

M Support a play park
M Do not support a play park

M neither interested or not
interested in a play park

5.0 Summary

5.1

This is one of the largest consultation exercises we have carried out at
Rainbow Leisure Centre. In all, 449 people have been consulted, split
between 3 methods of feedback. GLL would like to conclude that with the
statistics used with the introduction of a Play Park at Sutton Sports Village
and the overwhelming response in favour of a new Play facility at Rainbow
Leisure Centre, that this new provision is in the best interest of Rainbow
Leisure Centre and the Epsom and Ewell Community.

better for everyone



Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

6.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 — Bowls Club Consultation

Bowls Club consultation signing in sheet

9.4.19
Name Club Sign
Mk Cocyal’ FHunToys |
Smctu Coam;/ Hunlors
Syl SMarrt h
Ake Pruco ]
Rubhord_Price '
—\XY\'A;\ [\(&M Vlﬂ.u-vuﬂ
bﬁm_.d. LOn.M,/ lﬁn A zﬂ
Davd Lo v Cheon ow\y
C P~ tle, s Pe Firiee
P2e Lone [ N
QE@\/QPHJ\ AN ] s
=) B S Rocal oA N ewAl
&Mr \IQ}L—\_‘ - 3
HowALrD (Lo | Muerrres /) asuom
MbeyuNE  F L o«
Tesap A& R A ATT Ron sTetm Newo Lo
TOM PG Pscsiy +  H otmens
FUm CLERSY EVo o PRI
Lot US4 «
Frovces Sultowood | EFSEEAN Mmoo
Semclva Hapwvean - meore W
Dgare  Eibes — Crogn Cowell =
-C)h ) Moo BN ﬁ{i?&sﬂ\( 'MLQ;G!N D\J‘)deﬁ "6
' /?éﬁ"“}\)’\((} E Wt 4L i > ' ®
) o Fwile Viivae: Youlne Cibe 8
Bete eSHE ALy P At v s o
wenr C MpeceE Eosva bk
PRty LA EPSpm
bJ\‘V"\-\&J QM"‘:“" ‘:m AV an\
(CEMGE Vinson, | K nasweere
\f':(Q ‘?’f&\‘&ar _ fms- (—-&3&1*-» Kc
P e_wﬁha—:—\&u@\ra (“\.:&u
L-L(.N C—i‘ TE‘U OM PHEN e el
f o BrenNaAN | RerCies
Bvgn (o W sy 1 o
?T'Ju_% S Ep oo Corterts
GOwpoN AMEWWM pnd | I azes wwh Bori/) 8
e NEVVIMAN)
Mana o S Un \S—SZZCH
P asd Swo =S ) vl

GLL

Page 40
better for everyone



Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

Appendix 2 — Clubs that attended the consultation

Name of club Confirmed Number attending

David Leamer Confirmed 2
Carshalton Beeches Confirmed 2
Friendly Bowling club Confirmed 4
Cheam bowlers Confirmed 2
Epsom Park Confirmed 6
Lower Kingswood Confirmed 2
Epsom Court Confirmed 2
Motspur Park Confirmed 1
Neville Bowls Confirmed 1
Banstead Bowls Confirmed 3
Ewell Village Confirmed 1
Southborough Confirmed 2
Hunters bowls A Confirmed 10
Puffin Disability club Confirmed 4
Total 42

Appendix 3 - Bowls Club consultation on Tuesday 9t April

Page 41 G L L

better for everyone



Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

Appendix 4 - Example of online survey

Important member consultation View in hrowser

‘ |E| Right-click here to download pictures, To help protect wour privacy, Outlock prevented automatic download of this picture From

W Toblowe -t

Have your say on the

X ' proposed new soft play facility

at Rainbow Leisure Centre

Home | Memberships | GiftCards | ContactUs

Dear Parent / Guardian,
-

Rainbow Leisure Centre & Spa is currently undertaking a consultation process with
regards to adding an indoor soft play facility within the centre, for children up to 8 years
old.

The proposed soft play will consist of slides, trampolines, climbing features and a sensory
area, all provided in a state of the art permanent built structure located within the current
bowls hall, Full details and drawings of the proposed plans are displayed in the centre
reception.

To ensure we make an informed decision about the new plan and proposed [ocation within
the building, we would like to invite our customers to have their say by completing the
short gquestionnaire below, before Spm Friday 26th April 2019,

O
COMPLETE THE QUESTIONNAIRE
"

Thank you for taking the time to give your feedback.

Best ¥Wishes,

Darren Pope
Seneral Manager

Better, Rainbow Leisure Centre & Spa
.

Page 42
better for everyone



Appendix 5 — Delivery report from the online survey

[ REEE

Last
date
sent

15
Apr
2016
1447

&
Apr
2019
14006

Mare actions *  rainbow
Id Campaign
10474682  Rainbow Leisure Centre MNew Soft Play

10439929

Froposal Survey April 2018 - parents &
guardian

Rainbow Leisure Centre Mew Soft Play
Froposal Survey April 2010

Appendix 6 — Questionnaire Table in the Leisure Centre

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

®Q  Export

Last Total Delivered
modified  sends

by

@ 552 541

@ 1,031 1,074

Page 43

GLL

better for everyone



Agenda ltem 4

Annex 2
Appendix 7 — Summary of the Consultation done at Rainbow LC
18-24 25-40 41-54 95+
17 184 78 76

3+ per week

1-2 per week

1+ per month

Less than once a month

66 223 33 a3
Pool Gym Bowls Sports Hall Studios
270 109 45 32 46
Café Creche Spa Activity Room
187 35 41 25
Yes Mo
234 61
Mo reason given Good ideaf great facility
72 150
Lack of local soft play Bowls is valuable facility
a3 a0
Age range Car park Price Opening times Other
9 10 3 1 2
23

Page 44



Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

Appendix 8 — Bowls usage figures compared to Sutton Play Park usage figures

Bowls Attendance
sutton Play Park attendance

Figures in Red estimated as
sutton play park openedin
Sept 18

Jan Feh Iar anr Iay June Jul Aug Sept Oct MNow Dec Total
546 676 T 212 32 1 28 29 104 £80 616 a08 4032
3985 4254 5214 4235 4200 000 000 000 4363 4383 4256 3685 53500
Bowls vs Play Park attendance over a 12 month period
6000
5000 -
4000
B Bowls Attendance
M Sutton Play Park attendance
3000 -
2000 -
1000

GLL

Page 45
better for everyone



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 4
Annex 3

Epsu: 7, Surrey, KT18 6AB

1t May 2019

Sam Beak,

Leisure Development Manager,
Town Hali,

The Parade, Epsom,

KT18 5BY.

Dear Sam Beck,

Closure of Rainbow Indoor Bowling Rinls.

Please find enclosed a copy of my letter to Darren Pope, General
Manager, Rainbow Leisure Centre.

We are disappointed that the Rainbow Management have proposed the
closure of the Indoor Bowling Rinks at such a short notice. As you canread in
my letter, we were given no time to respond to this plan and feel we have
been side-lined in the Rainbow’s future. We hoped for a full consultation
period of at least one year to give us time to promote our sport (indoors and
out). As you are aware Bowlingis a Summer Sport with Outdoor greens. The
Council support Outdoor Bowling in the Parks but seems unable to support
Indoor bowling in the borough. In the past elder members of our community
have enjoyed this activity all year round. This looks like it will be ending for the
Winter months.

Please pass on my concerns to the relevant committees concerned with
this decision.

Yours sincerely,

Page 47



Agenda Item 4
Annex 3

HUNTERS BOWLING CLUB

¢/o Epsom Bowling Club,
Worple Road,
Epsom,

KT18 5eEW

The Manager,
The Rainbow Centre
East Street,

Epsom.

Dear Sir,

Closure of Rainbow Indoor Bowling Rinks.

Following the Consuitative meeting at the Rainbow Leisure Centre on
9/04/2019 we feel we must put into writing our feelings about the way the
Rainbow Centre has handled this matter. We do not understand why this
decision has been made so quickly giving us no time to respond to the decision
in full. We had no indication that the Centre were considering closure and a
two week consultation period is simply inadequate for such a serious decision
involving the ending of Indoor Bowling in the borough of Epsom and Ewell.

We know that the Indoor Bowling goes into a quiet period during the
summer months because we play outside from May to September. Outside
bowling closes for seven months of the year and we look forward to
transferring our playing inside at the Rainbow Centre. As you know, Bowling is
generally for older members and represents good exercise and a sociable
outing for our 24 members. When the Rainbow Centre was re-built we fought
to get our two rinks and it now seems such a shame that bowling will
completely cease. The rinks represent a very valuable purpose built asset for
Epsom and whilst we understand that it probably does not make a profit, older
members do enjoy the facility. Bowling at the Rainbow has never been

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 4
Annex 3

successfully promoted or encouraged. Very few local residents are aware that
they can use the rinks. We do wonder if a short promotional period could be
introduced to test the market and see if attendance could be improved.

The purchase of bowling mats for use in the main gym will not be a
good use of funds. As a club we take our bowling seriously, we are not
prepared to play on a rolled out carpet and competing with other gym users
and asking for the carpets to be put out. Thus if the current rinks are taken
away it will mean the end of Indoor Bowling in the Borough.

We understand that Puffin club will also lose this facility which will no
doubt be a blow for their members.

We have not seen figures relating to the proposed soft play facility but
we assume that you are convinced of the volume of use it will enjoy. Is there
another area that could be used for this facility or could one be built?

In closing, we would like to formally request a stay of the current plans
while a proper study is carried out to see if the Bowling facility can attract
more activity and in this respect we would be pleased to discuss how we can
help promote bowling at the Rainbow.

We have copied our letter to Epsom Borough Council and Bowls England
and hope that our views will be considered and the valuable bowling facility
remains in use for local residents.

Yours faithfully

Howard G. Ellis

Hunters Bowling Club.

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Agenda Iltem 4
Annex 4

Déar
Rainbow Centre

| am writing to complain about the Rainbow Centre’s plans to close its purpose-
built, indoor bowling rink and to replace it with a young children’s play area.

i
S e e e

Eor well over 20 years now, members of numerous bowling clubs in the area
have been using this room to play bowls all year round.

It is the only sports facility of its kind serving a great many people in the area
over the age of 60. There are sO few physical activities or facilities offered to
senior members in the community that it seems a shame that this change is

even being considered. E———
—

The proposed replacement space for the bowling members is to share a room
and to have a bowling mat on which to bow!, rather than the full indoor green it
has now, which is an insult to experienced and new bowlers alike.

've been told the Centre is proposing this change because the bowling
sessions are poorly attended and running at a loss. However, as the young
children’s play area will need to include very expensive equipment which the
Centre is having to provide, | cannot see the logic of replacing the bowling
facilities with the substantial additional cost to provide this play area.

Please let us keep our indoor bowliﬁg green going. Not only for the physical
health benefits, but also for the social interactions it gives to its participants.

Thank you.

Yours sincerely

Page 51




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5

20 June 2019

EWELL COURT HOUSE

Head of Service/Contact: Damian Roberts, Chief Operating Officer

Mark Shephard, Head of Property and
Regeneration

Urgent Decision?(yes/no)

If yes, reason urgent decision
required:

Annexes/Appendices (attached): = Annex 1 — Plan of Ewell Court House
Annex 2 — Pictures of Ewell Court House

Other available papers (not
attached):

Report summary

This report sets out the action taken by the Council in recent months to increase
bookings at Ewell Court House as part of the Council’'s agreed approach to
enterprise and income generation. This approach aims to make discretionary
Council activities more financially sustainable, ensuring that valued services continue
to be available in both the short and longer term. Although the actions taken by the
Council to date have led to some improvements in bookings, this has not been at a
level needed to make the venue financially sustainable.

This report explores the opportunity and potential benefits from entering into a
partnership with a specialist from the wedding and events sector to maximise the
public and community use of this important and treasured building and recommends
a way forward.

Recommendation (s)

(1) Agree to recommend to the Strategy and Resources Committee that the
Council seek to enter into a partnership agreement with a specialist
wedding venue company to increase bookings at Ewell Court House and
put the building on a more sustainable footing.

Page 53




Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

1

Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1

This report contributes to the priorities in the Council’'s Corporate Plan,

namely, “Supporting our Community” and “Managing our Resources”.

The report also contributes directly to the Council’s Enterprise and Income

Generation Plan approved in 2018.

Background and history of the building

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Ewell Court House is a Grade Il listed building owned by the Council and
dating back to the late 1730s. In 1892 it was remodelled by the then
owner to make it more suitable for grand Victorian entertaining. The
building is licenced for wedding and civil ceremonies.

It is an imposing and characterful building with a grand reception area,
decorative ceilings, wood panelling, polished wooden floors, stained glass
windows and the tegula paved terrace overlooking the lake. Annex 1
includes some relevant pictures. The building is set in the beautiful
historic grounds of Ewell Court Park, which held the prestigious Green
Flag status from 2012 with fountains, cascades, rock pools and its own
secret grotto.

It is widely acknowledged that Ewell Court House has great potential as a
venue for weddings and other important occasions as well as being a
valued place for local community groups to meet. The building can
accommodate 90 guests for a wedding breakfast and 120 guests for an
evening party. It can also seat 100 for a wedding ceremony.

The building was refurbished and partly rebuilt by the Borough Council
following a serious fire in December 2013 which destroyed 50% of the
roof and various parts of the upper structure and resulted in severe water
damage to ceilings, ornate plaster work and floors. Following the
reconstruction works, the building reopened for bookings in November
2015.

The Council works closely with a local community group, Ewell Court
House Organisation (ECHO), and they have also helped to promote the
importance of the building and encourage its use.

The Council’s Enterprise and Income Generation Plan

3.1

3.2

In April 2018 the Strategy and Resources Committee agreed the Council’s
Enterprise and Income Generation Plan. This built on the positive thinking
and practice that already exists within the Council along-side reinforcing
the strong public service ethos that characterises the borough and which
continues to put the borough’s residents first.

Four specific work streams were identified in the plan:

Page 54



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

o identify market opportunities in both the short and medium term

o provide services that customers are prepared to pay for, which
generates revenue that can be reinvested into Council services

o enable services to respond more quickly and efficiently to market
opportunities.

3.3 Inrelation to venues such as Ewell Court House, the plan included a
focus on increasing wedding bookings and other events at Ewell Court
House and identified, effective marketing, sales and web site development
as well as “exploring more partnership opportunities with local industry
specialists”.

4 Efforts to improve bookings at Ewell Court House

4.1 Since the reopening of Ewell Court House in November 2015 bookings
have not reached expected levels. As a result in recent months the
Borough Council has taken positive steps to encourage more events to be
booked at Ewell Court House through improved marketing. This has
included a new dedicated website http://www.ewellcourthouse.org/ and
the production of a new marketing brochure. Some of the pictures from
this brochure are included in the Annex.

4.2 As aresult of the Council’s additional marketing activities, bookings and
income levels have increased at Ewell Court House. However, there
continues to be significant times when the building is unoccupied or
partially unoccupied. This includes a number of Friday and Saturday
evenings when larger celebration events would usually be expected to
take place.

4.3  During the 2018/19 financial year, the Council took 49 booking for higher
value celebration type events including engagement parties, wedding
anniversaries, Christmas parties, birthdays and weddings, generating
some £45,000 in income. This falls short of the potential of 92 events of
this type that could have been accommodated at Ewell Court House on a
Friday or Saturday evening alone. This would have generated closer to
£85,000 in annual income in addition to the £22,000 from regular or ad
hoc smaller hires that take place at other times of the week.

5 Options appraisal

5.1  Three key options for the Council are set out below. All options
considered are based on the Council retaining ownership of Ewell Court
House as the long-term custodian of this important community building.

Page 55


http://www.ewellcourthouse.org/

Community and Wellbeing Committee

20 June 2019

Agenda Item 5

Option

Description

Potential implications

Option 1 -
Continue as is

Continue to utilise the in-
house knowledge and
expertise to try and
increase bookings at
Ewell Court House

Benefit Stability created by no
change.

Disadvantages - The building
will remain underutilised, Local
Tax payers will continue to
subsidise the costs of bookings in
the building offering no long-term
financial sustainability.

Option 2 -
Additional staff
and marketing
budget

Employ additional staff
with experience and
marketing expertise from
the wedding sector and
secure a larger budget for
marketing and promotion.

Benefit - More marketing effort
will lead to increased interest,
some of which will convert into
bookings

Disadvantages.- Additional
costs to the Council with the risk
that insufficient additional
bookings can be achieved to fully
cover these costs.

Option 3 -

enter into a
partnership with a
specialist wedding

The full range of services
associated with booking

and supporting events at
Ewell Court House would

Benefit - Some risk transfer
Increased bookings and income
to the Council

Reduced running costs to the

and events be undertaken on the Council
company Council’s behalf by a Higher levels of customer service
partner with the expertise | and satisfaction
and track record in More community use
weddings and events.
Disadvantages —
It may not be possible to find an
organisation that meets the
Council’s expectations.
5.2 The above options appraisal would suggest that the greatest potential

benefit could be derived from Option 3 — to enter into a partnership with a
specialist wedding and events company for the day to day operation of
bookings and services at Ewell Court House.

Page 56




Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

6 What could be achieved by working with a specialist partner

6.1  For illustrative purposes, the type of outcomes the Council would seek to
achieve by working with a specialist partner, say through a lease
agreement of up to 15 years, could be as follows:

e A strong wedding and events offer for Ewell Court House, with effective
marketing and end to end customer service

e Higher levels of bookings being taken with associated improvement in
overall building utilisation resulting from higher levels of customer
satisfaction

e Discounted community use of the building on certain days/times
compared to what the community currently pay

e Reduction in the staffing, running expenses and maintenance costs
incurred by the Council

e Capital investment by the partner organisation in the maintenance and
further enhancement of the building (this would be subject to the
Council’'s agreement and Planning permission where appropriate)

e A guaranteed income to the Council that could enable the building to
be put on a more sustainable financial footing

6.2 Through these arrangements, the Council would be transferring the
operational financial risk to the partner organisation for the period of the
agreement, with the partner then taking responsibility for the future pricing
structure. In contrast, the subsidised rates for use of the building by local
community groups would be agreed by the Council at the start of the
partnership and could only be amended with the agreement of the
Council. This is similar to the partnership arrangements that exists for the
day to day operation of the Council’s Rainbow Leisure Centre although on
a much more modest scale, or more closely reflects the successful
partnership type arrangement that operates at Nonsuch Mansion.

6.3 The Council would only enter into an agreement with a partner
organisation if it offered an improved outcome in the net position on
running costs and income and an improved subsidy/outcome for the local
community groups that use the building.

7 What type of specialist partner would the Council seek to work with

7.1 There are a number of criteria that could be used to select the best
organisation for the Council to partner with and this would be tested
through a formal procurement process in line with Council policy. This
could include some or all of the following:

e A successful track record in the wedding and celebration events sector

e A successful track record as a custodian of historic community
buildings

e A successful track record of building and maintaining positive relations
with local community groups and public sector organisations

Page 57



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

e Ability to offer a comprehensive wedding service package including
catering.

e Established strengths in marketing, end-to-end customer service, and
the delivery of high quality digital communications (web sites, social
media, etc).

8 Financial and Staffing Implications

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

The total direct costs associated with operating Ewell Court House as a
venue is almost £131,000 and this is partially offset by £68,000 in income
from bookings.

Staffing costs 76,580
Direct running expenses (excl central overheads) 54,211
Total Costs 130,791
Income from bookings 68,392
Shortfall -62,399

In addition to the income from room lettings the site also generates in
excess of £77,000 from commercial leases. The leases relate to the
attached library, the café, Bambinis Nursery and the second floor space
occupied by the company “Four Seasons”.

Other costs of £95,271 currently charged to Ewell Court House, for works
to the fabric of the building, apportionment of central overheads and
capital charges are excluded as these costs are likely to be retained by
the Council.

If it is agreed that events at Ewell Court House should be undertaken on
the Council’s behalf by a partner organisation then any implications as a
result of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)
Regulations 2006 (TUPE) will be explored as part of the tender process
and, if applicable, could result in the Council working with the partner
organisation to progress a consultation process with the member(s) of
EEBC staff to whom TUPE regulations apply.

Chief Finance Officer’'s comments: The operating of Ewell Court House
as a venue costs this Council in the region of £62,000 per annum. Any
reduction in this subsidy can be used to mitigate the impact of future
funding reductions for this Council.

Page 58



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

9

Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

9.1

9.2

The legal implications are considered in the body of this report. If this
proposal is agreed then the Council’'s Legal Team will need to continue to
be involved in the preparation of the documentation for the tender
process, consideration of TUPE implications and preparation of any
resulting lease

Monitoring Officer’'s comments: None arising

10 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

11

12

10.1

Securing greater use of the building will help Ewell Court House to be
more financially sustainable, and will help deter anti social behaviour that
can sometimes arise in and around unoccupied or underutilised buildings.

Partnerships

11.1

11.2

The Council has a long and positive track record of working in partnership
with specialist organisations to secure best value for the Council and for
local residents. This recognises that as a relatively small Borough
Council, with a modest workforce, it is not possible to build up or sustain
high level of technical or specialist expertise in all areas.

The Council has entered into successful partnerships for the day to day
operation of the Council’'s Rainbow Leisure Centre and the day to day
management of Nonsuch House.

Risk Assessment

12.1

12.2

As with any change it is important to understand the potential risks and to
address these were possible through actions that will mitigate those risks.

While there is a risk that the Council may be unable to find a suitable
partner with the required expertise and track record to partner with, if one
is found, the table explores the main risks associated with entering into a
partnership and how these can be mitigated.

Risk Area Mitigation Risk
1 | Insufficient additional This risk would be transferred to | Low
booking and associated | the Council’s partner, with the
income is generated Council seeking a guaranteed
level of income
2 | The partner may not The Council will only enter into | Low
have the necessary a partnership with an

expertise to make this organisation that has a clear
arrangement a success | track record of success in this
area.

3 | The day to day condition | Responsibility for the day to day | Low

of the building may not | maintenance of the building

Page 59



Community and Wellbeing Committee
20 June 2019

Agenda Item 5

be maintained to the
required standard

would transfer to the partner
organisation and compliance
will be closely monitored by the
Council. There would also be a
built in incentive for the partner
to maintain the building to a
very high standard in order to
secure bookings.

The community use of The level of subsidised Low
the building may suffer | community use would be
as a result of the formally agreed in advance and
increased booking for the subsidised prices fixed
events providing certainty to local
community groups. This may
mean that community use will
need to be focused on the
quieter times of the week (ie
those times that would be less
popular for weddings or big
occasions)
The partner may not be | The building would remain in Low
successful and run into | Council ownership and the day
financial trouble and to day operations would return
need to withdraw from to the Council if for any reason
the partnership the partner was unable to
continue.
The partner organisation | There has to be a commercial Low
may be more successful | incentive a partner organisation
than expected and as a | to come on board and to
result generate more achieve positive outcomes.
income for themselves However, the Council would
seek to put in place a
mechanism to share in the
benefit of any operating
surpluses above a certain level
alongside open book accounting
to ensure there is complete
transparency.
Local Community Early and open communication | Low /
Groups who use Ewell with relevant local community Medium

Court House may be
concerned.

groups will take place before
any partnership is entered into
This will explore the significant
community benefit of the
approach as well as to the
overall sustainability of the
building and seek their input into
defining the selection criteria for
a new partner.

Page 60




Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 5
20 June 2019

8 | Bookings at other The character, location, size, Low /
Council venues in the and condition of Ewell Court Medium
borough may suffer if House means that it provides a
bookings at Ewell Court | specific niche offer which can
House increases be seen as different and

complementary to the offer at
other Council owned venues
such as the Town Hall, Nonsuch
Mansion, Community and
Wellbeing Centre, Rainbow
Leisure Centre and Bourne Hall

13 Conclusion and Recommendations

13.1 Entering into a partnership with a specialist wedding and event
management organisation would enable the Council to increase bookings,
put Ewell Court House on a more sustainable footing, and secure on-
going subsidised access to the building at agreed times for local
community groups.

13.2 Itis therefore recommended that the Council seek to enter into a
partnership with a suitable specialist organisation for the day to day
running of Ewell Court House.

Ward(s) Affected: Ewell Court Ward;

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



enda Iltem 5

g
Annex 1

A

Ewell Court House

Pictures from




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



I0O {s1i4

Agenda Item 5
Annex 2

woou Bunaspy Wooy aajwwon 7

3,.
bt || 3

Floor Plan for
Ewell Court House

100/{ pUNnao.ls)

WOooM JSIUM

lleH oueu3

\
ayng |elnog = Wooy ajuy
=
<
>
|leH aseanelg R JopuIoD Uspien

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 6
20 June 2019

FORWARD PLAN

Head of Service/Contact: Damian Roberts, Chief Operating Officer
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No

If yes, reason urgent decision
required:

Annexes/Appendices (attached): = Annex 1 — Forward Plan 2019/20

Other available papers (not None
attached):

Report summary

This report asks the Committee to agree its forward plan for 2019/20.

Recommendation (s)

(1) That the Committee approves the forward plan 2019/20 attached at Annex
1.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The delivery of the Council’s Key Priorities and Service Delivery Plans are
underpinned by decisions made by the relevant policy committees

2 Background

2.1 The forward plan of future items for consideration will be updated and
reported to each meeting of this Committee. It is intended to support the
delivery of the Key Priority Targets and provide members with an
overview on upcoming reports.

2.2 The forward plan has been shaped by the priorities set out in the Council’s
Corporate Plan agreed by Members, Key Priorities and Targets for
2019/20 agreed by this Committee on 19 March 2019, including the next
stage on important issues and actions initiated by this Committee in the
previous Municipal Year, or issues that are happening nationally which
could have a significant bearing on the work of this Committee.

Page 67



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 6
20 June 2019

3 Forward Plan for Committee Items 2019/20

3.1 ltis proposed that the Committee approves its forward plan for 2019/20
attached at Annex 1.

4 Financial and Staffing Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial or staffing implications for the purposes of
this report, as known implications for this financial year have already been
reflected in the process for setting the Council’s cash limited budget for
2019/20.

4.2 Financial and staffing implications arising from any future item considered
by this Committee will be set out in the relevant report at that time.

4.3 The Committee will need to take into account workload implications when
considering its forward plan, particularly if it wishes to add any new items..

4.4  Chief Finance Officer’'s comments: None for the purposes of this report.
5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 The Committee’s draft work programme 2019/20 has been designed to
meet the Committee’s responsibilities as set out in legislation and its own
Terms of Reference.

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of the
report.

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1  The terms of reference for this Committee and a number of the items on
the draft forward plan for 2019/20 included in Annex 1 will contribute
positively to Environmental Sustainability and Community Safety.

7 Partnerships

7.1 The Committee may consider future items or recommendations on
matters which rely on a partnership approach or rely on the cooperation of
existing established partnerships.

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 Any relevant risks associated with items in the Forward Plan will be
identified at the time in the reports considered by this Committee. .

Page 68



Community and Wellbeing Committee Agenda Item 6
20 June 2019

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 Forward Planning is an essential way in which the Council ensures that it
can deliver Member priorities where important decisions are required
during the course of the year on matters of policy prior to implementation.

9.2 The Committee is asked to consider the draft forward plan items for this
Committee set out in Annex 1, and agree the items that they wish to
consider during the year ahead. This will then be reported regularly to the
Committee and updated as necessary.

Ward(s) Affected: (All Wards);

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Agenda |
DRAFT FORWARD PLAN 2019/20 Acive i

COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE

20 JUNE 2019

Introductory Presentation on the scope of the Committee
Rainbow Leisure Centre — Change of use of Bowls Hall
Ewell Court House

Draft forward plan

10 OCTOBER 2019

Review of Bedding Operations

Review of Home from Hospital

Policy — Events on Council Land

Homelessness & rough sleeping

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

CCTV Review

Horton Country Park — Change of use (“Green Room” former agricultural
building)

21 JANUARY 2020

Capital Programme

Revenue Budget

Fees and Charges 2020/21

Voluntary Sector Grants and Funding 2020/21

19 MARCH 2020
Key Priority Targets for 2020 to 2021

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Rainbow Leisure Centre- Change of Use of Bowls Hall
	Rainbow Leisure Centre- Change of Use of Bowls Hall Annex 1
	Rainbow Leisure Centre- Change of Use of Bowls Hall Annex 2
	Rainbow Leisure Centre- Change of Use of Bowls Hall Annex 3
	Rainbow Leisure Centre- Change of Use of Bowls Hall Annex 4

	5 Ewell Court House
	Ewell Court House Annex 1
	Ewell Court House Annex 2

	6 Forward Plan
	Forward Plan Annex 1


